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Dear Stakeholder,
following on from what has now become an established tradition, we once again submit our Integrated Annual Report,
which we’d like to remind you, was the Balance sheet Oscar winner in 2016.
The document that you now hold in your hands, or rather that you have on video, is "100% sustainable", created on an
entirely paperless basis.
Our goal is to present you with an overview of our company, not only from a quantitative point of view, but by trying to
immerse you in our philosophy and in the way we do business every day.
We would also like to take you into the future by embracing our vision and our mission.
One of the elements that has always characterised our way of doing things is transparency. I would like to underline this
in the introduction because, we believe that one of the prerequisites for creating positive and lasting relationships is to
talk about things as they really are, in an open and clear manner.
We like to consider ourselves a community that you can examine through a clear lens, without the need for filters.
Our partners, whether customers or suppliers, banks or other stakeholders, value GTS for its openness and sincerity.
Our Group’s creditworthiness is also the result of this choice and is fundamental whenever we approach major investment
projects, which certainly have not been lacking year after year.
To this end, Elite certification is a well-established process, as is the good practice for certifying our individual and Group
financial statements on a voluntary basis and having implemented an organisational model that complies with the
principles of Decree 231.
For us, a company and Community mean always keeping alive the dialogue or rather a positive and competitive exchange
with the environment surrounding us, on a path of dynamic, continuous and unstoppable growth.
We like to think of every goal that we reach as the first step towards achieving new goals.
GTS is an ever-changing organism that is constantly evolving.
Creating the value that our shareholders and all stakeholders are entitled to, is one of our objectives. But this is not our
goal in the absolute sense.
Our business must be innovative, focused on the long-term and above all sustainable.
Sustainability is the new catchword. My children of 6, 9 and 11 years old are masters in waste sorting, pollution, alternative
energy.
From a theoretical concept reserved for a select few, it is finally permeating downwards, becoming part of the collective
consciousness and awareness.
As GTS, we have a huge advantage: it comes naturally to us!
Or rather, sustainability has always been part of our DNA. By definition, our core production asset, the railways, reduces
all negative externalities. Pollution, accidents, deaths and injuries that make up our sad statistics every year could benefit
enormously if we all went in this direction.
So sustainability is one of those macrotrends that tells us with certainty that GTS has a business model focusing on the
future and that it can only grow, grow and grow. Other elements dictate this long-term trend and further strengthen the
soundness of GTS' vision. These include:
• the closure of borders by all states limiting the transitability of trucks in favour of intermodal transport,
with real quotas (e.g. Switzerland and Austria);
• the increasingly stringent rules applying to the truck sector, which have the direct and immediate consequence
4

of making this mode increasingly expensive (e.g. driving hours, rest in the cabin, cabotage);
• the total lack of generational replacements for drivers, to the extent that many companies have their
trucks standing idle due to the lack of people who can drive them;
• the "withdrawal" of fleets from Eastern European countries which had monopolised and depressed transport
prices over the last ten years (due to standardised EU rules and increased labour costs);
• the affirmation of the idea in the client's mind that intermodal transport, especially thanks to private railway
companies (such as GTS RAIL) entering the market, is a modal choice with definite advantages (economic,
sustainability, flexibility and efficiency).
However, ours remains a highly niche market.
The barriers to entry, both in terms of the capital needed and also in terms of skills, are such that we have not seen new
players enter the market for some years now.
We find ourselves in a demand paradox, with exponential growth and extremely limited supply, which is growing at a
much slower rate. For GTS, this translates into an incredible growth opportunity. Our ability to develop and expand our
business will be directly proportional to our ability to invest.
For this reason, we are also interested in the structured capital market (stock exchange and funds), in order to ensure
rapid but balanced growth for our company.
Newcomers to GTS immediately perceive a business that is well managed and organized according to modern and
innovative management principles, while retaining a deep sense of familiarity.
We are not a "dot.com" but our clear perception is that this sector features very little technological innovation, and this is
why we have been strengthening our IT sector year after year, aiming to create an ever better customer experience and
eliminating the information asymmetries, as well as the distortions in our sector.
GTS maintains the link of its core business to intermodal and rail transport, but the aim is to evolve towards a One Stop
Shop logic, offering customers a wide range of transport and logistics services.

Kind regards,
Alessio Michele Muciaccia
Chief Executive Officer
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GUIDE TO READING THE INTEGRATED REPORT

Guide to Reading
the Integrated
Report 2018
LEGEND

External link

The GTS Group Integrated Annual
Report (IAR), now in its fourth edition,
has been prepared according to the
principles of the IR Framework and is
structured according to capitals. The
six capitals of the GTS Group are:
•

Internal link

•

•

•
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financial capital - i.e. the set
of economic and financial
performances that identify the
value creation process and
that are measured in certain
key figures, including: turnover,
production value, EBIT and
EBITDA, net financial position
and balance sheet indices;
intellectual capital - i.e. the set
of intangible resources that help
achieve a competitive advantage
over direct competitors and
other players, finding expression
in know-how, the specific
training projects provided, IT and
digital innovation;
productive capital - i.e. all the
specific assets of the intermodal
and rail transport sectors that
enable the Group to provide
highly complex services ranging
from locomotives and railway
wagons to transported swap
bodies;
human capital - i.e. the Group of
employees and their skills that
proactively contribute to the
generation of integrated thinking
through the sharing of the
same value system and ethical
principles;

•

•

social and relational capital
- i.e. the set of relationships
with different types of external
stakeholders, including
customers, suppliers and
communities in the broader
sense, which through the
materiality process, also
contribute to defining the
value strategy and deciding on
information to be reported;
natural capital - namely, all the
resources available in nature,
impacted by the company's
business and which, therefore,
represent an inestimable source
of wealth, with its protection
involving the constant reduction
of CO2 emissions, responsibly
managing the waste cycle,
making sustainable investments
and reducing energy
consumption.

In order to promote the empowerment
process in terms of integrated reporting,
the GTS Group has once again this
year decided to submit the IAR 2017
to its stakeholders for assessment,
asking them to specify any areas for
improvement. The IAR 2018 therefore
attempts to provide the right response
to stakeholders’ requests through a
reporting process that increasingly
aims at reporting on SDGs, offering
a representation of the GTS Group
effective contribution to sustainable
development during 2018.
With the aim of providing an accurate
representation of the business

management and of impact of the
GTS Group’s activity, the IAR has been
drafted by focusing information on nonfinancial topics considered as worthy
of attention for the purposes of the
materiality analysis (in the Appendix).
The 2018 IAR is organized into three
macro sections.
In the first section, “The
Group’s Identity”, the main
traits characterizing the Group’s
management are set out, in terms of
history, mission, company values and
integrated thinking.
The second section, named
“Our value strategy” includes a
description of how the GTS Group
intends contributing to sustainable
development through its business
model, risk management, governance
and its ongoing dialogue with
stakeholders.
The third section centres on
significant topics, namely the
specific content making up the six
capitals, based on the IR Framework.
For a fuller understanding, see the
“reconciliation table: material topics
– GRI Content Index – IR Capitals”.
The Appendix includes the
final paragraphs dealing with
methodology aspects, namely the
criteria and principles underlying the
preparation of the document, the
materiality analysis and the chart of
association with the GRI Standard.
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01.
THE GROUP'S
IDENTITY

01. THE GROUP'S IDENTITY

A history
of success
The origins of GTS Group date back to 1977, when Mr Nicola Muciaccia
bravely faced the entrepreneurial challenge to set up “his own” transport
business. Since from the beginning great attention has been paid to a large
number of clients, striving to offer the best transport service possible,
based on the combination road+rail.

2008
1992

GTS Rail is established
and the railway
licence for the national
network is obtained.

The first national
train departs.

2010
Vertical integration
of GTS Rail production.

2011

2009
1977

2007

The first company of
GTS Group was
founded by President
Nicola Muciaccia.

The first
international
train departs for
Manchester.
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The first locomotives make
their first appearance in
GTS: Sasha, Freedom and
Independence. The first
trains internally produced
by GTS Rail depart along
with them.

The safety certificate is
extended to a wider territory.
The Group services are
extended to cover also
dangerous goods. The safety
certificate, issued by the
Railway Safety National
Agency, is obtained.
Participation in the
International trade fair
“Transport Logistic” in Munich.
The fleet of the railway
company grows, to include
Elettra and Zeus.

2018
Subscribed purchase
agreement of 5
locomotives and 210
railway wagons.
GTS receives from
Confindustria
Bari Bat the quality seal
for the awork related
learning experience.

2014
2012
GTS RAIL gets
to 6 locomotives
with Zoe.

The Italian Ministry
of transport and
infrastructures
issues to GTS RAIL
S.P.A. the railway
national licence for
passengers
transport.

2016
The Rolling Stock
Maintenance Workshop
is inaugurated and set
in motion.
Balance sheet Oscar.

We make the future
of Confindustria.
Acquisition of 50% of the
share capital of SGL S.r.l.
President's visit
of the Senate, Maria
Elisabetta Alberti Casellati.

2015
2013
Expansion and
commercial set in UK
and Netherlands:
GTS UK Lts and G.T.S.
Nederland BV are
established.

Nicola and Alessandro
complete the fleet of
GTS-branded locomotives,
which now counts 8 total
available and circulating
units.

2017

Felix Award.

“Elite” Certification.

A board of directors
for GTS Holding
is established and
appointed.
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Group’s
shareholding

ANNA MARIA
FELICIA MIGLIO

ALESSIO MICHELE
MUCIACCIA

NICOLA
MUCIACCIA

56%

22%

22%

ANNA MARIA
FELICIA MIGLIO

GTS HOLDING
SRL

16%
ALESSIO MICHELE
MUCIACCIA

100%

16%

GTS SERVIZI SRL

NICOLA
MUCIACCIA

16%

52%

52%

100%

65%

50%

62%

MUCIACCIA
COSTRUZIONI
GRUPPO GTS
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Group’s
organisational
structure

BOARD

SPECIAL
ATTORNEY

CEO

Pursuant to legislative
decree 81/08

GENERAL
MANAGEMENT
INFORMATION
SYSTEM

SAFETY AND
QUALITY
MANAGEMENT

HUMAN
RESOURCES

ADMINISTRATION
FINANCE AND
CONTROL

OPERATIONS

MARKETING
& SALES

RAILWAY
SERVICES
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GTSNET:
a network as
big as Europe.

KILLINGHOLME

DUBLIN

LONDON

ROTTERDAM

PURFLEET
ZEEBRUGGE

PARIS

MELZO
MILANO
PIACENZA

BOLOGNA

POMEZIA

BARI

ISTANBUL

MARCIANISE

PATRAS

GTS Rail
Other suppliers
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The international
context in which
GTS operates
course, transport, represents the
new frontier where companies
and governments are called on to
engage and intervene.
The traditional concept of transport
economics relating to single modal
markets has been surpassed in the
case of logistical products, by a
concept of transport and logistics
economics (economic logistics)
that includes the entire integrated
cycle of procurement, production
and distribution, spanning the
entire business (or rather business
networks), and more generally all
economic and political sectors.

Logistics thus becomes an invaluable
resource for businesses and
territories in general.
The general option of utilising
large capacity modes of transport
over long distances with reduced
costs per distance unit, combined
with the option of concentrating
significant quantities of standardized
loading units in certain terminals, has
allowed sector operators to organize
shipping flows by integrating
multiple methods and consciously
reducing costs.
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Transport, energy and environment
policies are key components of the
European Union's strategy for smart,
sustainable and inclusive growth.
These aspects are interlinked and
have a profound impact on the
daily life, well-being and prosperity
of European citizens. Logistics,
which encompasses more than
the mere handling of goods and
which includes procurements,
the management of stock and
materials, production planning,
the management of finished
products, their preparation and
packaging, warehousing and, of
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• High growth rate
of the industry
• High concentration
of operator
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01. THE GROUP'S IDENTITY

In general, the market outlook over
the next financial year remains very
cautious, due to the number of
variables that make the forecasting
framework rather uncertain:
•

•

•

developments in the international
economic situation, with the risks
associated with the crisis in the
Euro area and slowdown in the
BRICS growth rate;
the phenomenon of naval
gigantism, which could lead
to significant changes in the
geography of transhipment in the
Mediterranean basin;
the corporate liquidity crisis.

In a context of high market
vulnerability, the container sector
is the most sensitive to the drivers
mentioned above. It is therefore
of primary importance to evaluate
traffic flows in a broader context than
the national context to understand
our country positioning in relation
to its European and Mediterranean

competitors. Within this scenario,
the railways represent an important
mode of transport in Europe, thanks
to its safety, low pollution and
efficiency aspects. This is why the
revitalisation of the rail network
has become the focus of European
policy for sustainable mobility. In this
competitive context, Italy, with 5.5 km
of rail network per hundred square
kilometres, is positioned midway
between the countries in the EU.
The national railway system focuses
predominantly on passenger
transport, where Italy ranks fourth in
Europe in terms of traffic intensity and
has a more marginal role in freight
transport, where there has been
limited development in intermodality
(road-rail, sea-rail), placing it in sixth
place in Europe. Rail transport is
one of the sectors with the highest
potential both in Europe and in Italy,
due to the extensive investment
programme underway in the sector,
aimed at creating a trans-European
rail TEN-T network, directed at

the overall reorganisation of an
intermodal mobility system. In terms
of international developments, Italy’s
performance is by no means in line
with the main European countries of
similar size, where this indicator has
grown at a substantially sustained
rate. This is true anywhere, even in
countries as diverse as France and
the United Kingdom in terms of
institutional structure.
However, significant investments
have been undertaken on the railway
infrastructure in recent years, with
these involving the Tyrrhenian and
Adriatic line, which is used on a daily
basis by GTS trains. The reversal in the
trend and financing of incentives for
intermodal transport (iron bonuses)
have resulted in sustainability policies in
the transportation of goods, which it is
hoped will soon bring about the switch
over from road to rail transport over
medium to long-distance destinations.

IN EUROPE
Economic activity depends on
the logistics efficiency for the
supply of materials to industry
and for the mobility of goods
along the supply chain until they
reach the end consumer. Although
logistics includes different types
of activities, the most obvious and
environmentally damaging aspect
is the widespread use of freight
transport. If the EU is to continue
promoting new sustainable
transport systems in the future, it
is necessary to understand to what
extent sustainability can be a key
element for freight transport and to
develop policies to facilitate this.
The European Union's incisive
policies with regard to Member
States aim to define a reliable,
low environmental impact and
efficient market. Encouraging
long-distance rail freight transport
has a positive impact on other
Community competences, namely
on the energy market. Increases in
16

this green mode of transport would
encourage less energy dependence
on imports of petroleum raw
materials. These economic policy
choices have also extended the
scope to the automotive market,
which has been asked to make a
greater effort in terms of emissions.
By 2030, newly registered cars will
be emitting significantly less CO2
than in the past. After a period of
gruelling negotiations, the average
type-approved emissions in any
manufacturer's range will have
to increase from the maximum
95 g/km in 2021 to the 80 g/km
expected in 2025: a 15% cut that
anticipates the 37.5% cut expected
in 2030. In addition, the new
regulatory framework requires that
the whole life cycle of car emissions
is assessed at European level. The
road that has led the European
Union to the modest results
achieved so far has its roots in 1992,
when the European Commission set

-75%
Reduction of CO2 in the
environment compared to full road
transport

INTERMODALITY IN
AVERAGE ALLOWS
TO SAVE 75% IN TERMS
OF C02 EMISSIONS
REDUCTION,
COMPARED WITH
ALL-ROAD TRANSPORT

as its main objective rebalancing
the different modes of transport.
EU policies over the last thirty years
have always favoured and promoted
more efficient and sustainable
methods of transport. Most recently,
the European Parliament and
Council regulation that defines the
performance levels in terms of CO2
emissions for heavy duty vehicles,
where its proposals are referenced
within a scenario that already
considered transferring 30% of
goods to rail over long-distances as

a target by 2030, and 50% by 2050.
The importance of the road sector
in this respect is unquestionable:
in order to reduce CO2 emissions,
this is the sector where the
most significant saving levels are
expected. We are referring to a
scenario where the more than
six hundred thousand leading
companies across Europe move
well over 70% of goods by road.
To this end, it is important to
provide the reader with some
figures: 6% of total EU emissions

70

60

50

CO2 Emission
per ton-km in EU (2012)

40

30

20

10

Road

Rail
Electric and diesel
locomotive

come from this market, of which
25%, is accounted for by the road
transport undertaken by heavy
goods vehicles. Freight transport
maintains its relatively close
correlation with economic growth
(unlike passenger transport, which
has experienced faster growth).
Whereas total quantities of goods
are growing relatively slowly,
distance-weighted quantities
(tonne-kilometres) have increased
more rapidly as average distances
have increased; this is partly due
to the trend towards industrial
concentration and centralising
storage. However, these trends

Electric
locomotive

Diesel
locomotive

are not inevitable: average road
haulage distances in the United
Kingdom have decreased once
again in recent years. These trends
mean that freight transport has
increased more than GDP and
transport as a whole over the last
decade. As a result, freight transport
is contributing increasingly to CO2
emissions. The analysis by mode
of transport shows that, overall,
there have been limited variations
in modal shares, so road transport
continues to occupy a dominant
position.
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Integrated thinking
in the Group’s
business model

The strengthening of sustainability
processes within the GTS Group’s
core activities has for some time
now marked out a path aimed at
integrating reporting processes,
based on the assumption that
"integrated reporting means
integrated thinking". This is in
order to implement organic and
integrated monitoring with respect
to requests from the market, the
authorities and public opinion to
receive more extensive, transparent
and responsible corporate
information, so that stakeholders
can have a more complete overview
of the risks, opportunities and
challenges that companies face
today. The need to create shared
value for all stakeholders has led the
GTS Group over time to rewrite the
concept of sustainability as a means
to pursue its mission or move
goods across Europe whilst fully
respecting the environment.
The pillars on which the Group's
strategy is firmly based focus
strongly on merging the economic
with the social and environmental
dimensions:
•
ongoing and continuous
dialogue with stakeholders;
18

•

continuous benchmarking
update concerning the
sustainability good practice
carried out by other players
within the reference industry;

•

the development from
sustainability report to the
current integrated report, has
characterized the cumulative
reporting over the three-year
period 2015 - 2017. - In this
time frame, reporting has
evolved from an exclusively
financial dimension to an
integrated one with particular
attention to non-financial
aspects (governance, risk
management, environmental
and social).

The central role of “integrated
thinking” represents the complex
organisational approach
characterising the GTS Group,
which is made up of people with
various skills, who bring diversity
not only in terms of gender, but who
also face and manage significant
challenges and change issues with a
constructive and proactive mindset,
without remaining impassive.

However, in order to maintain this
approach, it is necessary to invest
time and resources.
The investment which characterises
the GTS Group focuses strongly on
people who, in different ways, work
in conjunction in the value creation
process and who, sensitive to and
aware of ESG issues, may become
the protagonists in a new way
of doing business, by actively
contributing to the achievement of
the 2030 Sustainability Agenda goals.

2013

2014

2015

ANNUAL REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT +
SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

2016

2017

2018

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

INTEGRATED
ANNUAL REPORT

The multidisciplinary nature of the work team that contributed in various ways to drafting the IAR 2018
is made up as follows:

CIRO
ARMIGERO

TERIANA
CORALLO

GIUSEPPE
DESANTIS

VINCENZA
LASSANDRO

Head of the Working
Group
GTS Service

Operations manager
G.T.S. - General Transport
Service

General manager

Safety manager
GTS Rail

STEFANO
STEA

PASQUALE
TODISCO

ANTONIO
VALENZANO

Chief Technical Officer
Rail Services

Chief financial officer
GTS Service

Chief operation officer
GTS Rail

The information connectivity proposed with IAR 2017
has been appreciated by stakeholders. For this reason,
it was considered appropriate to continue increasing
the use of this information tool for the reader:
•

various content in the report – within the same
report, reference is made to other sections that go
into greater detail on certain aspects;

•

past, present and future – the performance
indicators from different financial years are compared,
which, however, only feature elements which can be
compared with quality forecast information;

G.T.S. - General Transport
Service

•

capitals;

•

financial and non-financial information – full
combination of economic and financial data with
environmental, social and qualitative governance
information.
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02. OUR VALUE STRATEGY

GTS Group’s
contribution to
the sustainable
development goals
set by the UN
The Plan of Action for People, the
Planet and Prosperity incorporating
the 17 Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) was signed in 2015 by
UN Member States. This document,
which has been called the 2030
Agenda for Sustainable Development,
sets out the objectives that signatory
countries have committed themselves
to achieving by 2030.
These goals require necessary and
urgent concerted action, with the
aim of promoting prosperity and
protecting the planet.
Attention to the subject once
again emerges from the European
Commission, which presented a
"reflection paper" on 30 January 2019,
setting out reflections on how the
sustainable development objectives
can best be achieved, and how the
European Union can best contribute

22

within the deadlines set, whilst
ensuring a sustainable future in terms
of the welfare of European citizens.
In line with the specific guidelines on
sustainable development goals, the
GTS Group has continued to invest in
order to make a concrete contribution
to the objectives listed below. Well
aware of how important each of these
are, the Group continues unceasingly
to align its value strategy by:
1.
2.

3.

understanding the SDGs,
assessing convergence points in
business terms;
selecting priorities,i.e. an internal
assessment of positive and
negative externalities that led the
Group to decide which priorities
to pursue in strategic terms;
defining objectives, i.e. the
alignment between priorities

4.

5.

and SDGs in such a way that
GTS’ contribution to sustainable
development becomes apparent;
implementing integration,
i.e. activating a process of
sharing SDG objectives, not
only internally, between the
components of governance
and the different organisational
units, but also externally, along
the supply chain and within the
sector in which the company
operates, interacting with an
extended social community;
reporting and communication,
i.e. based on a system of KPIs,
able to inform the stakeholder
on the results and performance
achieved and to be achieved in
respect of the 8 goals shown in
the table.

GOAL

ACTIONS
Company fitness area
Project G.T. listens
Agreements with multi-specialist medical centres
Flexible working hours

GOOD HEALTH
Guaranteeing a healthy life, by promoting everyone’s
well-being, especially employees and, as a consequence,
their children

•
•
•
•

QUALITY EDUCATION
Guaranteeing ongoing education as well as fair and quality
learning opportunities

• The Group supports the attendance of refresher courses
• It promotes school-employment integration projects
• It organises training courses for railway operators

GENDER EQUALITY
Promoting gender equality and other levels of diversity
equality (age, culture, education)

• The Group promotes the safeguarding of gender policies
• It supports the integration of non-EU employees

DECENT WORK AND ECONOMIC GROWTH
Encouraging long-lasting and sustainable economic growth,
employment development and a respectable work for
everyone

• Training programme for the development of specific skills
and knowledge, also on SDG issues.

INNOVATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE
Fostering innovation and a sustainable industrialisation level

• New locomotives
• “4.0 Business Model” investments

SUSTAINABLE CITIES AND COMMUNITIES
Contributing to making cities and human settlements
inclusive, safe and sustainable

• Company testimonies at specific events and workshops

RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION
Guaranteeing sustainable consumption and production
models

• Training on sustainable transport
• Informing employees about waste reduction in the company
spaces

CLIMATE ACTION
Adopting measures aimed at tackling climate change and its
consequences

• Promoting CO2 saving formats, also for client companies

In 2018, the Group's approach to sustainability evolved,
combining the concept of triple bottom line (economic, social
and environmental considerations) with an integrated and
shared approach that sees business sustainability and value
creation as a common reference point.
The indicators developed by the Group offer an overview of
the current commitment.
As in previous years, the 2018 IAR contains many references
to sustainable development goals in the following sections:

• Letter from CEO
• "Sustainable” Management Plan
• Capitals
• Materiality Analysis
• Reconciliation Table: Material topics - Standard GRI
indicators - IR Capitals
• GRI Content Index
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The involvement
of stakeholders
The idea of "sustainability" as a
business management model based
on the involvement of stakeholders,
improves environmental, social
and economic performance while
maximizing reputation and value
is at the core of the GTS Group's
activities. According to these
principles - and therefore the
importance of the human and
social dimension - profit should
be achieved whilst respecting the
interests of all. And if everyone gets
involved, if everyone participates,
this profit grows.
Constant dialogue with all
stakeholders plays a central
role within the Group's business
model, both in the selection of
relevant issues and in the strategic
management phase of aspects with
a high impact for the stakeholders
themselves.
The company has decided to
reconfirm the same listening

methods used in previous reports
for this financial year. The use of the
direct channel as a listening tool
was also considered in terms of
effectiveness as the most valuable,
especially in measuring the reaction
time with respect to the inputs
received.
Moments of internal and external
listening > understanding of the
demands > release of feedback.
The necessary convergence
between the different needs
expressed by the various
stakeholder representatives is the
focus of GTS, also with regard to
this exercise. The contribution
provided by the stakeholders
analysis is valuable and returns
an objective measurement of
the proposed questions to the
interlocutor. The ever-increasing
involvement of stakeholders able to
cover all the types of stakeholders
identified has made it possible to

ask them for important feedback
regarding the content, structure
of the report and materiality. The
following table summarises the
definition of the macro categories
of stakeholders who came into
contact with at least one Group
company during the year under
review.
The following elements were
considered to be relevant for this
purpose:
•

people who have financial
relationships with Group
companies;

•

people who can influence or
are influenced by GTS Group
business;

•

people who interact with
the Group directly: trade
associations and mass media.

STAKEHOLDER

MAIN INITIATIVES

HUMAN RESOURCES

Regular sector meetings with the CEO - Monthly in-house publication since 2008 Corporate Intranet - periodic mailing

CUSTOMERS

Meetings on issues on a periodic basis - on-site inspections and technical checks verification audits - dedicated internet portal - periodic newsletter update

SUPPLIERS

Regular meetings - Verification audits

REGULATORY BODIES

Periodic checks and inspections

REPRESENTATIVE
ASSOCIATIONS

Regular meetings - Participation in the work of technical groups

TRAINING AND EDUCATION
INSTITUTES

Business case study on various scientific publications and degree thesis Participation in scientific committees of pre- and post-graduate training courses
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CUSTOMERS

SUPPLIERS

The GTS’s progressive growth must
include the meeting of clients’
expectations. The continuous
improvement of the service offered,
achieved by adopting a strategy
capable of promptly interpreting
clients’ needs, has in recent years
significantly improved collaboration.
The strengthening of non-financial
information has been possible thanks
to proposals from stakeholder
clusters that are increasingly aware
of the impacts deriving from opting
for railway transport rather than
traditional road transport.

The Group has always had a strong
propensity towards establishing
solid and lasting partnership
relationships. Thanks to this, the
Group is now part of a wider system
involving a large number of parties,
many of whom are suppliers. By
adopting this approach, it has
been possible over time for the
Group to establish forward-looking
relationships, focusing on longterm and sustainable investments.

HUMAN RESOURCES

REGULATORY BODIES

This category includes all the GTS
Group’s employees. The personal
engagement is pivotal to better
attain a match between corporate
objectives and personnel’s
expectations.

The GTS Group’s companies
regularly undergo audit activities
by supervisory authorities. Among
others, the National Agency for
Railway Safety (ANSF), the reference
body for directives on the subject, to
ensure high railway safety standards
can be maintained.

REPRESENTATIVE
ASSOCIATIONS
The GTS Group constantly maintains
relationships and actively takes
part in formal dialogue with its own
representatives, directly committing
itself in raising awareness as to CSR
at regional and national level.
This approach tangibly represents
the will to create shared value over
the long term, based on respecting
the legality, integrity, fairness,
transparency and dignity of people.

TRAINING
AND EDUCATION
INSTITUTES
The various written agreements with
Italian Universities, the learningworking programs, the partnerships
with technical high schools prove
the commitment and attention to
research and education.
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Internal survey
on the level of
satisfaction with
the 2017 IAR
The need to constantly align
company objectives and strategies
with stakeholders’ expectations
has led the GTS Group to define a
materiality matrix that is essential
to correctly identify the main and
priority issues on which to base the
actions of the GTS Group.
In carrying out all the ordinary
activities to select material issues,
the Group’s management asked its
own stakeholders to express their
opinion on the clarity and structure
of the 2017 IAR. The results of such
survey (set out in the Appendix)
have been useful to better organise
the 2018 IAR content.
In order to ensure the data
collected was effectively
comparable, it was considered

appropriate to repeat the same
survey used in drawing up the IAR
2017 for this exercise:
>
>
>
>
>
>
>
>
>

PRESENTATION OF THE COMPANY
AND EXTERNAL CONTEXT
GOVERNANCE
BUSINESS MODEL
RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES
STRATEGY AND ALLOCATION OF
RESOURCES
PERFORMANCE/CAPITALS
OUTLOOK
GENERAL INDICATIONS ON THE
REPORT/METHODOLOGY
OTHER

A representative sample of
stakeholders has been selected.
With an increasing redemption
percentage compared to the
previous year, a questionnaire was
submitted during the stakeholders
meeting at GTS Group headquarters

in December 2018, while other
engaged subjects received it by
email. The number of replies received
during the above event far exceeded
the number of replies received in the
previous financial year.
International instability and
the widespread climate of
uncertainty, together with the
unclear developments regarding
an unknown Brexit, have seen the
results of the survey point more
markedly than in previous surveys,
towards updating GTS’ positioning
within this framework of highly
uncertain issues. Strategies for the
future and the measurement and
mitigation of the related risks shape
the content of the IAR 2018 similarly
to what was noted during the
previous year.

PERCENTAGE OF RECEIVED FEEDBACK
38.5%
CLIENTS
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27.1%

SUPPLIERS

32%

COLLABORATORS

2.4%
BANKS

Governance
reviewed and updated in July 2015.
The governance model thus
structured lays the foundations for
a long-term policy of sustainable
value creation directed at creating
value for all stakeholders. By
assigning mandatory competencies
to the Shareholders’ Meeting, it
allows for a constant monitoring
between management and
shareholders with regard to some
governance key issues, such as the

appointment and withdrawal of
directors, the appointment of the
members of the board of auditors,
the assignment of the mandate to
a statutory auditor, establishing
the related remunerations.
The Board of Directors of the
holding company facilitated the
discussion and approval of the
Group's management policies,
with particular reference to the
corporate and strategic structure.

OWNERSHIP
GOVERNING BODY
SOLE STATUTORY AUDITOR
SOLE AUDITOR

Muciaccia Family
Board of Directors
Fabio Caputo
Andrea Venturelli

GOVERNING
BODIES

BOARD OF STATUTORY
AUDITORS

Nicola Muciaccia

Beniamino Di Cagno
Fabio Caputo
Vito Montanaro

GTS RAIL

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Anna Lucia Muserra
Fabio Caputo
Michele Tetro

RAIL
SERVICES

Annamaria Felicia Miglio

GTS HOLDING
GROUP

G.T.S. - GENERAL
TRANSPORT
SERVICE

MUCIACCIA
COSTRUZIONI
GRUPPO GTS
GTS
SERVIZI

SGL

Nicola Muciaccia

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

AUDITING
COMPANY

PricewaterhouseCoopers SpA

GTS has adopted a traditional
administration and control model.
The system is built in accordance
with the most advanced regulatory
provisions and standards of
corporate governance. The GTS
Group has undertaken a continuous
improvement process to voluntarily
comply with the Borsa Italiana
SpA self-discipline code approved
by the Corporate Governance
Committee in March 2006,

Board of Directors
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THE “SUSTAINABLE” MANAGEMENT PLAN
The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) define
priorities for contributing to global development,
promoting human well-being and protecting the
environment. Based on the Sustainability Plan, the
GTS Group communicates its strategic sustainability

guidelines to its stakeholders for the medium-long
term. The focus of the current three-year period will be
on the following aspects, some of which are currently
being finalised.

CHARTER OF COMMITMENTS

2018 > 2020

COMMITMENTS
SQAS CERTIFICATIONS (SAFETY AND QUALITY ASSESSMENT SYSTEM)

It is a system to assess the environmental, safety, security and quality
performances of logistics services providers to Chemical Companies. It is a system
to monitor logistics services providers in an independent and harmonised way, so
as to ensure a uniform assessment at all levels. The verification, in fact, is always
carried out by independent, credited and qualified auditors.

HACCP ISO 22000 (FOOD SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM) voluntarily adopted by
food supply chain operators, directly or indirectly involved in the food production
process. Each operator of the production chain is responsible for applying the
standard, which is not aimed at certifying the whole chain but at certifying each
single expertise.

GDP, offering greater guarantees to clients concerning the good practice of
distribution of medicines for human use (BDP/GDP), to take account recent
progress in the stocking and distribution of medicines within the European Union,
as well as of the new provisions introduced by the EU Directive.

ACEP-CSC, ensuring the highest safety to all operators that, in an international
context, carry out container transport and handling.

ACEP-CSC, ensuring the highest safety to all operators that, in an international
context, carry out container transport and handling.

WHISTLEBLOWING, consisting in the voluntary adoption of measures aimed at
preventing and tackling corruption and illegality. In particular, the measure aims at
protecting the employee who, during his/her work, points out illicit activities he/
she may come to know.

OVERSEAS PROJECT, entailing the creation of a department offering clients a
worldwide shipping service by sea.

AEO (AUTHORIZED ECONOMIC OPERATOR), the status of AEO allows economic
operators to utilise direct and indirect concessions and benefits in relation to the
customs-related operations carried out.
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DONE

SCOPE

CHARTER OF COMMITMENTS

INNOVATION AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

FIGHT AGAINST
CLIMATE CHANGE

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

PARTNERSHIP FOR THE GOALS

2015 > 2017

OBJECTIVE

ACTIONS

STRENGTHENING THE INCLUSION
OF SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES
WITHIN THE CORPORATE
IDENTITY AND MANAGEMENT

• Internal and external spreading of the
environmental policy introduced in 2011
• Granting a specific mandate as to sustainability

QUALITY EDUCATION

• Establishment of a Code of Ethics
• Setting out standardised procedures, approved
by the Board, to monitor risks and ethically
conducting the business

HANDLING AND MONITORING
RISKS

• Adopting an organisational model compliant
with the provisions set forth by Legislative
decree 231/01
• Better defining process KPIs

STRENGTHENING THE
EXTERNAL DISCLOSURE OF ESG
(ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL,
GOVERNANCE) INFORMATION

• Better compliance with the GRI’s process and
accounting standards.
• Section>Sustainability>in the corporate website

ESTABLISHING A GROUP
MANAGEMENT AND
COORDINATION ORGAN

Establishment and appointment of the Board of
Directors for GTS Holding Srò

IMPROVING THE LEVELS OF
SAFETY AT WORKPLACES

• Implementazione di un sistema di gestione
della sicurezza conforme ai requisiti della norma
OHSAS 18001.
• Maggiore standardizzazione delle procedure
interne oggi già presenti

MONITORING OVER THE GROUP

Nomina di un sustainability manager

APPROVING AND IMPLEMENTING
SHARED POLICIES REGULATING
QUALITY, ENVIRONMENT AND
SAFETY AT WORKPLACES (NEW)

Approval of the integrated management system

IMPROVING ENVIRONMENT
MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES

Implementing an environment management
system compliant with the requirements set forth
by the ISO 14001 standard

IMPROVING INFORMATION
FLOWS TOWARDS CLIENTS

• Communication format approved during
confirmation of saved CO2
• New structure dedicated to handling clients’
complaints

IMPROVING THE PROCESS
OF SELECTION OF SUPPLIERS

• Creation of a List of Suppliers whose
requirements for admission must also include
the possession of safety and environment
certifications

DONE

SCOPE
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The
corporate
business
model
The creation of long-lasting value for all engaged
categories of stakeholders cannot be attained without
adopting a business model aiming for the achievement
of shared growth and development of environmental,
financial, social and safety goals.
In compliance with the provisions set forth by the IR
Framework and by the Business Model Guidelines set
forth by the Business reporting Italian Network, the GTS
Group has redefined its business model accordingly, also
in consideration of the sustainable development goals set
by the 2030 Agenda.

CAPITALS

ENVIRONMENTAL

FINANCIAL
Assets and liabilities
Equity

The GTS Group’s business model is based on:
>
>
>
>

FREIGHT TRANSPORT MAINLY CARRIED
OUT BY RAILWAY;
ASSISTANCE TO RAILWAY TRANSPORT,
I.E. ROLLING STOCK MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES;
SERVICE ADMINISTRATIVE
AND ACCOUNTING ACTIVITIES TO THE GROUP;
REAL ESTATE SERVICES

The business and value creation model onto which the
Group is based is the one set out in the IIRC framework,
in which the six capitals, financial, infrastructural, human,
intellectual, relational and natural represent unavoidable
assets onto which and towards which the value creation
model is based and oriented.
In compliance with the IIRC framework requirements,
in the following table the value creation process is
described, starting from the transformation of inputs
through corporate activities up to the production of
outputs and to the creation of specific impacts.

OPERATIONAL
Locomotives
Rail wagons
PW containers
Properties

SOCIAL
AND RELATIONAL

HUMAN
Employees
Corporate bodies
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CORPORATE
ACTIVITIES

OUTPUT

OUTCOME

• SUSTAINABILITY
OF TRANSPORT
• ENERGY EFFICIENCY

• PROTECTION OF THE
ENVIRONMENT

• REDUCTION OF CO2
EMISSIONS

• BANK FINANCING
• MONITORING OF
INVESTMENT IN CASH

• OPTIMISATION
OF LEVERAGE
• CREDITWORTHINESS
• BUSINESS OPERATION

• LOCAL BUSINESS
• FINANCIAL SOLIDITY FOR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
AND INVOLVED PARTNER
COMPANIES

• CONTINUOUS
MAINTENANCE
AND INVESTMENTS
IN PROCESS
INNOVATION

• REDUCTION OF
OPERATIONAL RISKS
• PRODUCTION
EFFICIENCY
• COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

• INCREASE IN EMPLOYMENT
• REDUCTION OF CO2
EMISSIONS
• MULTIPLIER EFFECT
OF SPECIFIC SKILLS IN
TERRITORIES
• LOCAL BUSINESS

• ENGAGEMENT OF
STAKEHOLDERS

• REPUTATION
• STRENGTHENING OF
PARTNERSHIPS

• DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL
COMMUNITIES
• DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

• HEALTH AND SAFETY
AT THE WORKPLACE
• CORPORATE
WELFARE

• MOTIVATION
• REPUTATION
• TALENTS
ATTRACTION

• IMPROVEMENT OF LIFE
QUALITY
• INCREASE AND
TRANSFERRING OF SKILLS
• INCREASE IN THE
EMPLOYMENT OF
COMMUNITIES
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Risk management
and compliance
The normal management of the business and the
development of its strategy exposes the GTS Group to
various types of risk that could negatively affect the Group's
results. In order to mitigate these eventualities, the GTS
Group adopts an integrated risk management (Enterprise
Risk Management, ERM) model inspired by international
best practices, involving every corporate governance

The risks analysed and monitored by the Group for each
category are illustrated below.

1

3

EXTERNAL
CONTEXT
RISKS

OPERATIONAL
RISKS

RISK

MONITORING

2

4

STRATEGY
RISKS

SUSTAINABILITY
RISKS

RISK
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bodies according to its competencies. According to the
reference guidelines and best practices, the main objective
of ERM activities is the optimal identification, measurement,
management and monitoring of business risks.

MONITORING

RISK

MONITORING

RISK

MONITORING

1.
EXTERNAL CONTEXT RISKS
This category includes areas relating to risks arising from the country in
which the company intends operating, the introduction of new regulations,
technological innovations, changes in demand and competitor strategies.
These risks have in common the absence of management levers on the part
of the company.

OIL PRICE

The international conflicts that continue to
especially affect countries in the Middle East,
inevitably influence oil price estimates. The
slowdown in the crude oil market, which
already characterized 2018 and is affecting
this first half of 2019, does not make it easy to
understand how trends will move in the near
future. Global production cuts should have a
positive impact on production.
This analysis confirms what has already been
evaluated during the previous financial year,
that is to say, these upward forecasts will
generate a positive impact on the intermodal
transport of goods compared to the transport
of goods entirely by road with non-electric
motor traction.

RISK
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING

BREXIT

The repercussions of the UK's exit policies
from the EU significantly increased uncertainty
already during the first quarter of this year.
The United Kingdom’s exit from the European
Union, as sanctioned by the referendum that
took place on June 23, 2016 has triggered
a climate of profound uncertainty, affecting
imports and exports’ traffic to this country.
After drawn out and extensive negotiation, the
twenty-seven countries of the European Union
decided to postpone the United Kingdom's exit
to October 31, giving the British government
additional time to approve a negotiated
withdrawal agreement.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

NEW COMPETITORS

Very high barriers to entry, characterised
by stringent regulations and substantial
investments practically close off the sector to
new intermodal operators.

RISK
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING
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2.
STRATEGY RISKS
Strategic risks refer to the deterioration of the capital position and
profitability deriving from incorrect business decisions, from the inadequate
implementation of business plans and strategies, from an inappropriate
and lack of responsiveness to changes in the external environment, to the
extent that they result in a substantial change to the Group's risk profile.

CREDIT

The creditworthiness achieved by the Group’s
companies makes it possible for GTS to source
the necessary resources to finance growth in
the capital market.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group has invested in incubators necessary
for the training of talents to be subsequently
absorbed in the personnel.

RISK
OPPORTUNITY
MONITORING

REPUTATIONAL

The risk of decline in the corporate image, due
to a negative perception of the image among
clients, counterparties, shareholders and/or
supervisory authorities. Special attention is
attached by GTS Group to this risk category,
considering the many awards and certifications
it has been obtaining in terms of best practice
within the scope of responsible management
and sustainability accounting.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

3.
OPERATIONAL RISKS
Inadequate internal processes, human resources and technological
systems or external adverse events can result in significant losses for GTS.
This category also includes legal risk, namely the risk deriving from the
infringement of laws or regulations, contractual liability or liability in tort
or from other disputes.

IT

Enhanced in 2018, the GTS Group has an IT
department responsible for the research and
development of information integration solutions
with clients and suppliers. It also constantly
develops solutions that can optimize provided
services as well as decision-making processes.

INFRASTRUCTURE
MANAGER

The Rastatt accident that occurred in 2017,
raised attention on the railway infrastructure
issue, which GTS uses for convoys travelling in
Italy and Europe.
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RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

4.
SUSTAINABILITY RISKS
The need to preserve the environmental and social value of the GTS Group has
led the Board to take preventive action on issues relating to this type of risk.
This cluster includes all potential risk relating to the social and corporate areas,
personnel, human rights and anti-corruption fields. With particular reference to
reputational risk, the level of attention remains high in order to consolidate the
image of the GTS Group on the market.

FIGHT AGAINST
CORRUPTION

Job rotation in the positions more exposed
to such risk.
Monitoring of particular concentrations of turnover
for a small number of suppliers. Segregation of
procurement processes between several people
and others considered sensitive.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

CO2 EMISSIONS

Purchase of electric vehicles for the movement
of people.
Territorial marketing policies with the aim of
promoting employees use of public transport to
get to the workplace.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

WORKERS HEALTH
AND SAFETY AT THE
WORKPLACE

Increased training for employees in order to
illustrate specific risks and related measures to
mitigate these risks.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING

PROTECTION OF
THE ENVIRONMENT

Extended the scope of voluntary compliance
with environmental protection standards to
other Group companies.

RISK
THREAT
MONITORING
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THE CAPITALS

03. THE CAPITALS

The financial
capital
The financial capital - i.e. the set of economic and financial performances that
identify the value creation process and that are measured in certain key figures,
including: turnover, production value, EBIT and EBITDA, net financial position
and balance sheet indices.
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UP TO 2018 HIGHLIGHTS

OPERATING
MARGIN

103,517
THOUSAND EUROS

ROE

25.5%

EBIDTA

12,747
THOUSAND EUROS

ROI

8.9%
39

03. THE CAPITALS

THE VALUE OF PRODUCTION

The revenue trend recorded in 2018
allows us to appreciate and consolidate
a path of constant and continuous
growth. The analysis shows an increase
of 6% on an annual basis, which
determines the optimal conditions for

the investments made over the years
to produce the expected profitability.
With over 100,000 shipments, GTS
has guaranteed the handling of its
customers' goods in Italy, Europe
and the rest of the world by offering

shipping and air transport services.
The significant number of active
clients served in the reporting year
contributes to minimising the risk
of turnover concentrations with
a few clients.

2016

2017

2018

Revenues from sales and services

84,657

84,697

92,034

Other revenues and income

11,022

11,127

11,483

Total value of production

95,680

97,624

103,517

Thousand Euros

SALES
REVENUE OF
2018 VS 2017

+8.7%

OPERATING
RESULTS OF
2018 VS 2017

CAGR
2018 VS 2004

+19,5%

+11.6%

In the reference macroeconomic
context, the slowdown in the
growth of economic activity
inevitably influenced the dynamics
of the entire freight transport
market. In this sense, logistics
and transport have been affected
by changes both in terms of
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production organisation and in
terms of legislation, which has
inevitably influenced the growth
and development policies of the
companies involved.
The positive trend linked to the
performance of rail freight transport
shows that there is not only a modal

EBITDA
2018 VS 2017

+12%

shift between road and rail, but
also progressive integration. The
strategic role of ports, a central
element in guaranteeing the flow
of goods from faraway countries is
relevant in this scenario; road and
rail transport need to move these
volumes to their final destinations.

The following distinction by geographical area highlights the phenomenon described above,
i.e. an increase in non-EU traffic that is well integrated by the national and European routes
of the GTS Group.
TYPE OF REVENUES

2016

2017

2018

Italy

45,604

45,362

40,885

EEC

35,361

21,930

44,535

Extra Cee

4,323

19,204

6,614

Values expressed in euro thousands

The overall trend in revenues
recorded and the relative
evolutionary profiles observed over
time, together with the results
achieved in the period, highlight
how the technical/production
combination can be considered
to have been effectively achieved,
with a price level fixed that allows

for the full and correct remuneration
of all the production factors used in
the company circuit.
In order to facilitate a better
understanding of the economic,
equity and financial determinants
of the entire Group, the
reclassifications in the balance
sheet and income statement and

the quantitative determination
of the main financial statements
indicators have been reported
below, in order to appreciate
the level of company operations
in the execution of the technical
production process.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT
The reclassification of the income statement aims to highlight some intermediate margins which have a different informative
content in relation to the general structure defined in the Italian Civil Code. This method outlines how the result for the period
was realised, especially in relation to EBITDA compared to the value of production net of operating grants.

RECLASSIFIED INCOME STATEMENT

2016

2017

2018

Value of production

85,288

88,086

93,285

Production costs

(66,771)

(67,369)

(70,629)

Value added

18,517

20,717

22,636

Personnel costs

(8,458)

(9,339)

(9,909)

EBITDA

10,059

10,378

12,747

Amortizations, depreciations and write-downs

(3,048)

(3,640)

(3,694)

Operational income

7,011

7,740

9,053

Financial results

(338)

(379)

(347)

Earnings (losses) before taxes

6,673

7,361

8,706

Income taxes

(1,895)

(2,136)

(2,424)

Net income/loss

4,779

5,255

6,282

Values expressed in euro thousands
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THE BALANCE SHEET RECLASSIFIED FOR LIQUIDITY
An analysis of the consolidated balance sheet reclassified for liquidity shows the Group's strategic
choice oriented towards investments and growth.

INVESTMENTS

2016

2017

2018

SOURCES

2016

2017

2018

Working capital

33,148

35,580

41,534

Liabilities

62,618

64,751

69,965

Cash

2,000

6,146

7,560

Current liabilities

30,013

34,565

30,351

Cash and cash
equivalents

2,000

6,146

7,560

Short-term debts and
overdrafts

28,660

33,337

27,916

Deferred cash

31,149

32,434

33,974

Accrued expenses and
deferred income

1,353

1,228

1,175

Receivables from
shareholders

-

-

-

Non-current liabilities

32,605

30,186

39,614

Short-term finance
receivables

29,589

30,347

31,626

Medium and long-term
debts

25,209

21,095

30,295

Short-term fixed
receivables

-

-

-

Other liabilities

3,136

4,069

6,022

Accrued income and
pre-paid expenses

1,424

1,866

1,882

Employees leaving
entitlement

1,529

1,741

1,790

2,731

3,281

3,191

Inventories

136

221

466

Medium and long-term
portions of accrued
expenses and deferred
income

Fixed assets

49,694

51,527

59,789

Equity

20,223

25,356

31,356

Intangible assets

496

359

269

Share capital

891

891

891

Tangible assets

47,733

50,083

58,252

Reserves

5,549

8,052

12,756

Financial investments

388

378

191

Net income (loss)

4,779

5,225

6,282

Medium- and long-term
finance receivables

1,076

708

1,076

Con.to reserve

1,756

1,756

1,765

Advances to fixed assets

-

-

-

Third party equity

7,250

9,433

9,241

Total investments

82,842

90,107

101,322

Liabilities and equity

82,842

90,107

101,322

Values expressed in euro thousands

2014 2015 2016

2017 2018

THE TREND OF OPERATING
RESULTS 2014 > 2018
GTS Holding Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements, ended on 31 December 2017, on which
the economical-financial data herein are based, are
subject to voluntary auditing, which is carried out
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. Based on auditors’
judgment, the financial statements provide a true and
fair view of the patrimonial and financial position of
the group, of the economic result and cash flows in
relation to the Italian law which teaches the methods.
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2.5 3.1 4.8 5.2 6.3
MLN/€

MLN/€

MLN/€

MLN/€

MLN/€

NET FINANCIAL POSITION
2016

2017

2018

Cash

2,000

6,146

7,537

Short-term financial debts

(6,209)

(7,835)

(6,119)

Bank overdrafts and advances

(325)

-

-

Short-term part of long-term debts

(2,484)

(2,477)

(3,828)

Short-term debts for leasing

(3,399)

(5,358)

(2,291)

Short-term financial position

(4,209)

(1,689)

1,418

Medium and long-term financial debts

(25,209)

(21,095)

(29,035)

Loans from banks

(6,210)

(6,652)

(12,540)

Long-term debts for leasing

(18,999)

(14,443)

(16,495)

Non-current financial debt

(25,209)

(21,095)

(29,035)

Total financial debt

(29,418)

(22,784)

(27,617)

Values expressed in euro thousands

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS INDICATORS
A system of indicators needs to be
defined to express the company’s
ability to operate adequately
in relation to different aspects,
where the management activity

manifests itself. As a result, a set
of indicators was identified and
defined to illustrate the economic,
financial and equity considerations
that have been made in operational

INDICATORS

2016

2017

2018

% Roe (return on equity)

31

26

25.5

% Roi (return on investment)

8.4

8.8

8.9

% Ros (return on sales)

8.2

9.4

9.8

% Growth rate of net equity

31

34

22

% Growth rate of assets

16

8.8

12.7

Average days of collection

91

115

104

Average days of payment

87

114

95

The overall picture outlined above
clearly shows that economic/
administrative efficiency has been
adequately achieved. This is evident
from the joint examination of the
three different but closely linked
profiles referring to the following areas:

• economic balance, meaning the
ability of an enterprise to produce
economic benefits that regenerate
the resources consumed;
• capital balance, translated in terms
of an adequate qualitative/quantitative
composition in the capital structure,
with reference to all the relationships
between sources and uses;

terms. The results for the 2018
financial year testify to the Group's
commitment to continuous growth.

• financial balance, represented
by a "virtuous" and rational financial
structure, which characterises the
management of monetary flows
in a synchronic manner and attains
economically viable liquidity levels
in terms of the onerous nature of the
capital acquired involving different
degrees of constraints.
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The intellectual
capital
The intellectual capital – i.e. the set of intangible resources that help
achieve a competitive advantage over direct competitors and other
players, finding expression in know-how, the specific training projects
provided, IT and digital innovation.
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UP TO 2018 HIGHLIGHTS

299
DAYS OF TRAINING

45
ATTENDEES

65
TRAINING COURSES
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RAILWAY TRAINING

During 2018 GTS Rail provided the
staff with 65 courses, for a total
299 days of training, within its
training centre. The growth rate of
investments in training increased by
53% from 2017 to 2018.
The training courses which have
been provided were aimed at

achieving the following objectives:
•
acquisition of new professional
skills to obtain railway
qualifications;
•
acquisition of professional
knowledge and/or skills for
the performance of tasks/
activities or for the management

COURSES FOR
ACQUISITION OF
RAILWAY SKILLS/
QUALIFICATIONS

VOCATIONAL
TRAINING COURSES
No. of courses

No. of courses

24

22

No. of training days/hours

No. of training days/hours

70/560

185/1,480

•

of emergency situations (e.g.
training course on waste
transportation; training course
for transporting dangerous
goods; first aid courses; training
courses for fire-fighters, etc.);
refresher courses on acquired
professional skills.

PROFESSIONAL
COURSES
No. of courses

19
No. of training days/hours

44/352

2018 training activity

In GTS Rail the educational structure
is composed of the following
professional roles:
•

•
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Responsible for Training:
he/she has the task of
scheduling training activities
and coordinating the activities
of the teaching staff.
Approved Instructors (Teaching
Staff): professional personnel in
accordance with ANSF (National

Agency for Railway Safety)
regulations, responsible for
training and monitoring the
performance of staff engaged in
tasks related to railway safety.
•

Dangerous goods transport
consultant: staff holding a
professional training certificate
issued by the Ministry of
Infrastructure and Transport.

In 2018, Rail Services collaborated
with some training centres
recognised by the National Railway
Safety Agency, providing an instructor
for training on vehicle maintenance
and an Examiner to participate
on the Examination Commissions.
Approximately 200 man/hours of
training were provided for its staff in
2018. Five new maintenance workers
have received the authorisations
pursuant to Decree 4/2012 ANSF
during the year.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The considerable investments in
terms of economic and human
resources in this sector are based
on the conviction that Electronic
Data Interchange (EDI), or the
exchange of data between
information systems, is a source
of efficiency for the company's
operations. The development
and implementation of these IT
solutions has been made possible
thanks to a dedicated team, which
continually develops solutions to
facilitate the hectic daily operations
of all operators. During 2018,
the development of software
dedicated to the planning of rolling
stock maintenance began. The
high mandatory safety standards,
together with the fleet available to
the Group, have made it necessary
to systematise certain relevant
information that is monitored in
order to plan routine maintenance.
This information tool is part of the
process of optimising the orders
managed by OMR Rail Services
Srl. When fully operational, the

release of this application will make
it possible to significantly reduce
downtime, and therefore at the
same time, increase the profitability
of assets in circulation.
The mobile application called GTS
GO, released in 2017, has reached
a wide audience of suppliers and
customers. This software allows
for the immediate location of the
swap body during the order’s first
and last mile of road travel. With
this application, the company
responded to the customer's
requirement of being able to
constantly monitor delivery times,
whereas suppliers can immediately
exchange documents with the
GTS operational managers. The
active participation of reference
stakeholders has made it possible
to develop and implement this
information solution in a very short
time. The use of personal credentials
allows access to the partner area to
obtain information on orders already
processed, those scheduled, billing,
and the CO2 emissions not released

into the atmosphere. The page also
features a digital chat with related
operational employees.
The freight exchange developed
by GTS quickly connects transport
operators, forwarders, commercial
and industrial operators based on
a virtual environment, where GTS
launches its road transport offering.
The platform, which only requires
registration for profiling purposes,
will contribute to eliminating
brokerage services, maximising
the profitability connected with
transport and optimising supplier’s
loading capacity.
To give a strong IT infrastructure
to the software and services
developed a lot of investments
have been made to improve the IT
sytems performance. Investments
have been made in the data center
infrastructure to implement a N+1
tech components redundacy, Thanks
to this technical intervention the
GTS’ data center is now classified as
TIER IV datacenter with a guranteed
availability of 99.99%.

> GTS Client

> AMS

Software to
communicate with
customers.

Continuous monitoring
system.

> Customer Desk

> Claim Management

Continuous assistance
service.

Claim management
service.
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The productive
capital
The productive capital – i.e. all the specific assets of the intermodal and rail
transport sectors that enable the Group to provide highly complex services
ranging from locomotives and railway wagons to transported swap bodies.
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UP TO 2018 HIGHLIGHTS

47

MLN/€

8.1

MLN/€

Workshop

Locomotives

14.7
Containers

MLN/€

26

MLN/€

Railway wagons
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LOCOMOTIVES
GTS Rail Spa is currently equipped with a fleet of 11 locomotives, which
comprehensively travelled for 10 million km as of 31 December 2018 along
the Italian railway network.

2016

2017

2018

KM TRAIN ITALY*

1,234

1,700

1,756

KM TRAIN EUROPE*

2,173

1,850

1,600

NUMBER OF TRAINS OPERATING

3,547

3,735

3,554

In 2018, GTS Rail SpA signed a
contract to purchase a further five
new Bombardier locomotives. The
entire company fleet is of the latest
generation E483 type and complies
with all the regulatory requirements
relating to railway safety. During the
first quarter of 2019, we note the
delivery of "Zeus" which has recently
arrived at the GTS RAIL stable.

Values expressed in euro thousands

RAILWAY WAGONS
• “pocket”: railway wagons with
a pocket (also referred to a poche)
equipped to link semi-trailer axles.
This type allows for the semi-trailer
load as well as the transported swap
body;
• semi-trailers with P386 profile
transiting exclusively on the
Adriatic line.

The many details characterizing the
transport services commissioned by
the more than eight hundred active
customers of the GTS Group require
a fleet of wagons that are always
available to meet requirements in
terms of number and type.

As at 31 December 2018, the wagon
fleet consisted of a total of 350
wagons divided into the following
types:

PW CONTAINERS

LAST MILE

More than 2,300 high cube
containers are available to
GTS. Equipped with different
specifications and adapted to the
different product classifications
transported, swap bodies are
equipped with different side
openings (rear, side, open top),
different structures (vans and
tarpaulins) and different sizes (20,
30 and 45 feet).

In June 2018, GTS Holding acquired
50% of the share capital of SGL Srl.
The company operates in the road
transport of goods and specializes in
managing the first and last intermodal
mile. The integration of the service
rendered to the customer, as well as
the skills acquired by the same supplier
have made this acquisition possible.
SGL today boasts a fleet of over twenty
road tractors and operates at the

main Italian terminals handling and
transporting to and from GTS customer
loading and unloading areas.
The Shareholders' Meeting of April 12
approved the first post-acquisition
financial statements. Some elements
that may be useful for understanding
the operational dynamics of the
company in question are provided
below:

VEHICLES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TURNOVER

21

€ 431,061

€ 1,269,542
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• flatbeds: suitable for transporting
traffic units. They have no moving
parts and can only be loaded
vertically;

ROLLING STOCK MAINTENANCE WORKSHOP
Extending over a total surface area
of approximately 19 thousand square
metres, the workshop has started
providing the following services
both on GTS-owned and third
parties’ fleets. The services provided
essentially refer to:
•

•

first-level maintenance, whether
resulting from operational failures
or changes or planned and
defined changes in relation to
deadlines or routes established
by the manufacturer or the
railway infrastructure manager;
second-level maintenance, i.e.
overhaul and/or replacement
of mechanical or vehicle parts
involving the use of equipment
or complex knowledge.

Equipped with highly qualified
personnel, the OMR is equipped
with:
•
•

•

•

two tracks, each 60 metres in
length;
column-mounted bridge crane
lifting systems with a lifting
capacity of 16 tons or more;
mobile scaffold towers and
inspection pits providing a view
of the lower part of the vehicle;
SAFOP UGL 30/D pit lathe
controlled by Siemens,
mounted on one of the two
tracks.

The reduction in maintenance times
is guaranteed by the total absence
of assembly and reassembly

activities involving axles, typical of
the classic parallel lathes.
Such structural arrangement makes
it possible to carry out several
maintenance activities on wagons
and locomotive simultaneously.
Thanks to its ease of access, via a
1-metre deep pit, operations are
carried out on the running gear
by fully complying with operators’
ergonomics.
Since the spring of 2018, when
lathe operations started, services
have been provided to various
third-party railway companies and
external ECMs. During 2018, more
than 150 axles were worked on the
lathe, including both passenger
transport vehicles and locomotives.
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The human
capital
The human capital – i.e. the Group of employees and their
skills that proactively contribute to the generation
of integrated thinking through the sharing of the same value
system and ethical principles.
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UP TO 2018 HIGHLIGHTS

- 50%
ACCIDENTS AT WORK

+ 6.4%
INCREASE IN THE NUMBER
OF TRAINING DAYS
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HUMAN RESOURCES

People are the at the heart of this Group: they are
the ones that guarantee the success of GTS. This is
why they are protected and valued, developing their
skills and encouraging their motivation and energy, to
provide customers with excellent service. Substantial
investments have been made in order to guarantee a
healthy and harmonious working environment, aimed at
guaranteeing safe and pleasant layout, thus facilitating
the work of those often involved in demanding and

hectic operations. We invest in communication to
ensure open and constant dialogue with everyone,
so that everyone, with their own characteristics and
individuality, can contribute to making a difference.
The enhancement of people's work and their
contributions in terms of creativity and commitment,
the protection of their rights and the clear definition
of their duties are all aspects that are part of the GTS
Group’s mission.

THE GTS GROUP GROWTH PROCESS DURING THE
REPORTING YEAR, HAS ONCE AGAIN SHOWN GROWTH
IN TERMS OF THE NUMBERS EMPLOYED.

The companies of the GTS Group, in line with the
requirements defined in the budget to expand their
workforce, have selected and assumed the following
professional profiles:

1

DRIVER

TOTAL 39

1
INSTRUCTOR

25

1

TRAIN
TRAINING
AND DRIVING
TECHNICIANS

MAINTENANCE

1

6

HEAD OF ROLLING STOCK WORKSHOP
MANAGEMENT

STAFF IN CHARGE
OF FOREIGN
SHIPMENTS AND
SERVICES

ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES

4
39
TOTAL

54

34

5

2017

2018

24

30

138

134

AGE OF WORKERS
Some useful information about the Group's human resources is provided below:

10
50

45

40

8

30

29
20

5

7
20

19
22

10

Up to 25
years old

From
26 a 30

From
31 a 40

From
41 a 50

2016
2017
2018

Over 50

148
162
164
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The map shows the distribution
of income produced by GTS
employees on the whole Italian territory.

3
1

2

3

9
4
5

8
1

12

110
4

2

1
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FOGGIA
1
BARLETTA 2

3

ANDRIA

TRANI

BARI

2

3 1 3 44
1
2
1 5 3
1
6
1
1 2
1

4

1

1

1

1 BRINDISI

4

LECCE
1

1

TARANTO

2

CITY

NO. OF
COLLABORATORS

CITY

NO. OF
COLLABORATORS

Bari

44

Nardò

2

Modugno

6

Sannicandro di Bari

2

Bitonto

5

Altamura

1

Santeramo in Colle

4

Bitritto

1

Taranto

4

Brindisi

1

Palo del Colle

3

Casamassima

1

Terlizzi

3

Castellana Grotte

1

Trani

3

Foggia

1

Valenzano

3

Galatone

1

Barletta

2

Lecce

1

Bisceglie

2

Maglie

1

Bitetto

2

Manduria

1

Giovinazzo

2

Monopoli

1

Grumo Appula

2

Noicattaro

1

Mola di Bari

2

Polignano a Mare

1

1

1
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SAFETY IN THE WORKPLACE
The constant commitment to
research and defining organisational
and management measures aimed
at complying with internationally
recognised and adopted quality
standards has always been a
distinctive feature of the Group's

companies. Firstly, GTS Rail SpA in
2015, then GTS General Transport
Service SpA, in 2016, obtained the
OHSAS 18001:2007, Occupational
health and safety management
systems quality certifications. Safety
standards and the

2016

2017

2018

Accidents

-

1

-

Occupational accidents

2

1

2

Near misses

-

5

8

Non-compliance

-

7

4

corporate climate continue to
play a key role in the Group's
organisational dynamics.
Caution and prevention are
documented by the number of
accidents and injuries recorded
over the last three years.

The analysis of the accidents recorded essentially refers to the category
of events "on the way" to the workplace, which has had a large impact
in terms of sick days.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
The commitment to the best
performance of the Group
companies drives the pursuit of
certifications and their retention
in relation to environmental
management systems and quality
management systems.
Some time ago, the Group decided
to adopt a Corporate Management
System to improve:

•
•

•
•
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the quality of service offered to
its customers;
the management of direct and
indirect environmental impacts,
reducing the externalities
produced by its business on the
surrounding environment and
on citizens as far as possible;
the protection of its employees’
health and safety;
the social and ethical

responsibility of "doing
business".
To achieve these results, the Group
has chosen to adopt an integrated
management system in line with
specific international standards
on the subject of: Quality - UNI
EN ISO 9001:2008, Environmental
management - UNI EN ISO
14001:2004, Occupational health
and safety - OHSAS 18001:2007.

The mission of GTS focuses on
service sustainability and the
customer: this requires a daily
logic of integrated responsibility
firmly based on the principles of
identity: passion, transparency,
ethics and respect for market rules,
quality, professionalism and security
guaranteed in the service.
For this reason, over the years,
the GTS Group has implemented

various voluntary certification
systems with the aim of maintaining
and improving transport
services, achieving ever higher
performance levels and ensuring
economic, environmental and
social sustainability in its daily
management activities.
All systems are integrated with each
other to ensure the best application
in the different sectors in which

UNI EN
ISO 9001:2008

UNI EN ISO
14001:2004

the Group companies operate.
Employees guarantee the strict
application of the company's selfmonitoring manuals, which not only
contain rules and regulations but
also describe the procedures aimed
at achieving maximum safety levels.
Systematic checks and check lists
are periodically prepared by highly
professional personnel who carry
out very accurate inspections.

OHSAS
18001:2007

G.T.S. - General Transport
Service SpA
GTS Rail SpA

COMPULSORY TRAINING
In 2018, a total of 1,100 hours of training were provided and 139 people
were involved. The topics covered were as follows:

• Corporate organisational model
pursuant to Italian Legislative
Decree 231/01 (mog)
GTS RAIL SpA adopted the
corporate organisational model
pursuant to Legislative Decree
231 of 2001. For the purposes of
what is defined by the Legislator,
the effectiveness of the model’s
application also derives from the
extensive and effective training
of employees. Therefore, during
the year the company made every

effort to ensure that travelling and
administrative staff were
adequately informed of the
existence of this control.
• Integrated management system
(IMS)
These are the hours relating to
the dissemination of management
systems implemented in the
organization of the GTS Group
with reference to the
requirements in terms of
international ISO standards.

• Health and safety in the
workplace (SSL)
With reference to the mandatory
content of Legislative Decree.
81/08.
With a view to continuous
improvement, the following is the
training plan planned for 2019.
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The social and
relational capital
The social and relational capital – i.e. the set of relationships with different
types of external stakeholders, including customers, suppliers and communities
in the broader sense, which through the materiality process, also contribute to
defining the value strategy and deciding on information to be reported.
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THE DETERMINATION OF ADDED VALUE
AND ANALYSIS OF DISTRIBUTED VALUE

Added value, as the indicator for
assessing the wealth created by
means of corporate processes and
the subsequent stage of distribution
of wealth among the various players
that actively contributed to the
production of value.
Its quantification, obtained by
comparing external costs only to
the value of production, is useful
to analyse the distribution of wealth
generated by the technical, human
and financial capital.

2016

2017

2018

Value of production

85,288

88,086

92,034

External operational costs

(66,813)

(67,199)

(69,181)

Added value realised

18,475

20,887

22,853

Staff remunerations

(8,458)

(9,338)

(9,909)

Remuneration of debt capital financed
by third parties

(451)

(572)

(745)

Remuneration of public administration

(1,894)

(2,316)

(2,424)

Return on risk capital

5,187

5,755

6,562

Company return (amortisations and
provisions)

(2,485)

(2,906)

(3,213)

Values in Euro thousands

NOTE: for the calculation method you can consultate the National
Association for Scientific Research on Social Financial report (2013) GBS 2013, Giuffrè

REMUNERATION
OF PERSONNEL

2018
REMUNERATION
OF THE CREDIT
CAPITAL

43.4%
45%

2017

3.3%
3%
REMUNERATION
OF THE PUBLIC
ADMINISTRATION

REMUNERATION
OF THE COMPANY

10.6%

14.1%

10%

14%
REMUNERATION
OF RISK CAPITAL
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28.7%

28%

CUSTOMERS

The number of customers handled
by GTS in the 2018 financial year
reached 900. Customers represent
the Group's primary stakeholder and
it is for this reason that important
resources are dedicated to them in
order to build loyalty and consolidate
relationships, realising effective and
potential requirements. The figures
represent the development of a
customer portfolio that has recorded
a significant increase at a time, when
the trends of other competitors have
either confirmed or at most, are
down on previous years’ figures.
The positive trend involved
intermodal, road and sea transport.

14%
14%
10%
5%

49%

3%
3%

SUPPLIERS
The GTS Group seeks out
partnerships that manage to interpret
the interests of a region and stimulate
its growth, encouraging positive
relations and promoting its proactive
role in the regions it services. The
strict system to select and accredit
suppliers ensures long-lasting and
virtuous relationships are established.
Sustainability in the supply chain
is promoted, starting from the
supplier qualification phases and is
constantly monitored during audits
or specific in-depth analyses. In order
to be registered as a GTS supplier,
operators are required to complete

a self-assessment questionnaire on
quality, the environment, safety and
can be audited on these aspects.
The survey carried out on the basis
of an ad hoc questionnaire to assess
commitment on environmental and
social issues, was addressed to a
selected panel of more than 100
suppliers for the first time. It is based
on the following aspects that have
long characterized supplier selection:
⟶ confirmed legality, fairness and
transparency requirements;
⟶ respect for laws and regulations
in the environmental and social
field;

⟶ compliance with quality
standards that guarantee high
security profiles;
⟶ quality certifications related to
health, safety of human
resources and workplaces.
In addition, the regulatory and
authorisation procedure for
purchases adopted by all Group
companies guarantees that
spending policies are in line with
the area authorisation powers, as
well as with the relative forecast
budgets.

ASSOCIATIONS
In 2018, the number of
associations in which GTS
actively participates in terms
of appointments and positions
of responsibility has increased.

ASSOCIATION

DESIGNATION

PERSON MANDATED

Confindustria

Deputy Chairman

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Cifi

Member

Antonio Valenzano

Fercargo

Member

Alessio Michele Muciaccia

Confindustria – CSR Forum

Member

Ciro Armigero

Assofer

Member

Anna Maria Felicia Miglio
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TRAINING INSTITUTES AND RESEARCH BODIES
POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY
OF BARI
The bond and collaboration with
the universities in Bari has been
consolidated. During 2018, GTS
participated in the work of the
scientific committee preparing
the short master's degree course:
"Ports, inland ports and special
economic zones".

HIGHER TECHNICAL INSTITUTE
FOR LOGISTICS AND TRANSPORT
The 2018 financial year marks
the end of the three-year period
relating to the first agreement
signed with the institution in
Taranto. The partnership has
contributed to enriching the
training courses offered by the

This postgraduate training provides
an in-depth analysis, referring to
the main legal, economic, fiscal,
environmental aspects of the
Special Economic Zones and the
related activities: from taxation
to the environment, from the blue
economy to integrated logistics
to technology transfer, including
virtuous experiences and
best practices.

school, by sharing study programs
and the active participation of
company management, in their
capacity as lecturers.
The target set for the 2018 financial
year was met by the companies
of the GTS Group: 30% of the
students hosted on internships
at the head office were hired on
permanent contracts.

THE COMMUNITY AND PARTICIPATION
IN EVENTS AND FAIRS
During the year, the Group promoted
various events to raise awareness
on intermodal transport. GTS was
a guest of Interporto Bologna SpA
together with the top players in the
sector for a conference on future
logistics developments on the
Adriatic Railway Line. The Bologna Zeebrugge train was also presented
in Bologna, to relaunch the Bologna
Interporto terminal and the new
railway services offered by the
Group. Finally, the Padua Fair,
three days for the Green Logistics
Expo and in Istanbul from 14 to
16 November for the international
transport logistics exhibition.
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Promoted by Legambiente Puglia,
awarded the “GGAG – Go Green
Apulia, GO!” project, based on the
Public Notice “Giovani per il sociale”,
promoted by the Presidency of the
Council of Ministers – Youth and
Social Service Department, GTS
accepted the Association’s invitation
with the aim of relaunching the
economy for the youth in Apulia,
by redeveloping the green virtuous
options available in the region, and
creating a network made up of young
entrepreneurs, innovative companies,
schools, universities, training
institutions, third sector bodies and
the Public Administration.

After the two-years
course, 2 of the 6
students who had
spent an internship
period in GTS have
been offered
an employment
contract.

VISIT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE SENATE
On November 5, 2018, the
shareholders of the GTS Group
hosted the President of the Senate,
Ms. Casellati, at the head office.
For the first time, the second most

important State appointment visited
the Company offices, expressing her
appreciation for the commitment and
value with a high social impact that
GTS has on the territory.

SASHA TROPHY
In the Apulia capital for the fifth
consecutive year, the amateur
sport association “Pelagica Fishing
Club”, in partnership with the
underwater activities and leisure
fishing Italian Federation, organised
the eagerly- anticipated Bluefin
tuna leisure fishing competition
“OPEN TOURNAMENT FIPSAS
2018 – BLUEFIN TUNA RACE
DRIFTING – V SASHA TROPHY.
The initiative, representing the
most important sporting event of
its kind in southern Italy, saw the

participation of qualified crew from
various regions all over Italy, where
similar national and international
competitions are held every year.
It is a competition for Bluefin tuna
fishing enthusiasts, the species
having the highest coefficient of
multiplication of the catch, when
determining the final score. The
prey is immediately released at
sea, in full compliance with the
marine environment and the strict
regulations of leisure fishing.

ITALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE ROUND TABLE
As part of the usual day dedicated
to stakeholders' meetings, on
14 December 2018, GTS hosted
a round table organised by
Confindustria in conjunction with
Elite of Borsa Italiana, on alternative
financial instruments to traditional
banking channels. It was an
interesting exchange where growth

rends and the benefits deriving
from the listing on the regulated
markets of some companies in the
territory were illustrated.
The topic that is currently highly
topical, included participation by
several local entrepreneurs who
have been given interesting food
for thought.

BASKETBALL FIORENZUOLA
The geo-sectoral rotary policy of
sponsorships has allowed G.T.S. General Transport Service SpA to
provide support to the basketball
team that plays in the C Gold Emilia

Romagna series for the 2018/2019
season. For the first year, the
company has sought to strengthen
support for sport in other regions
of Italy.
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CAPITALS

The natural
capital
The natural capital – namely, all the resources available in nature, impacted
by the company's business and which, therefore, represent an inestimable
source of wealth, with its protection involving the constant reduction of
CO2 emissions, responsibly managing the waste cycle, making sustainable
investments and reducing energy consumption.
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UP TO 2018 HIGHLIGHTS

-1,144,295,957
TOTAL KG OF SAVED CO2 FROM 1977 TO 2018

EQUIVALENT TO THE SEQUESTRATION CAPACITY OF

56 MILLION TREES
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REDUCING CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSIONS:
EU OBJECTIVES AND ACTIONS

The European Parliament has for
several years been committed to
implementing measures to reduce
CO2 emissions in various sectors.
The European Union is the third
largest producer of greenhouse
gases after China and the United
States. The EU is committed to
definite targets and has undertaken
a number of initiatives to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions. By
2015, total EU greenhouse gas
emissions had already fallen by 22%
compared to 1990 levels. According
to Member States' forecasts based
on existing data, the EU will be
able to achieve its objectives.
Greenhouse gas emissions are
expected to be 26% lower in 2020
than in 1990. The United Nations
Conference on Climate Change
in Katowice, Poland established
rules to implement what had
been decided at COP21, the Paris
Climate Conference in 2015, by
the year 2020. In particular, criteria
have been defined for measuring
carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions
and evaluating measures to combat
climate change in individual
countries.
The main dispute emerging
during the conference referred
to the latest report by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) of the United
Nations, which is responsible for
scientifically analysing climate
trends and producing models
on its evolution. In its report, the
IPCC confirmed that an average
global temperature increase of at
least 1.5°C above pre-industrial
levels is now inevitable - over the
next 12 years - and that to stay
within the overall 3°C increase it
will be necessary to cut carbon
dioxide emissions by 45% by 2020.
Without radical action, the average
temperature will rise above 2°C,
leading to more extreme weather
events and changes in the climate
of entire geographical areas,
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with consequences for millions of
people.
15% of Europe's CO2 emissions
are produced by road traffic.
The European Parliament has
adopted legislation that reduces
car emission standards. The new
rules adopted set CO2 emission
reduction targets for new cars
and new vans at 37.5% and 31%
respectively, to be achieved by
2030.
GLOBAL FREIGHT GREEN: THE
ACTION PLAN TO LIMIT EMISSIONS
FROM FREIGHT TRANSPORT
The International Agency's Energy
World Energy Outlook estimates
that the transport sector accounts
for 25% of total CO2 emissions,
of which black carbon accounts
for 19%. These values have a
devastating negative impact on
human health and the environment.
This is the context in which the
global action plan for the transport
of green goods is set out: it aims
to reduce emissions of CO2
and other pollutants. With this
prerogative, the programme aims
to harmonise and expand freight
transport programmes and to
increase consumption efficiency by
stimulating innovation in the global
freight transport supply chain.
Announced by the UN SecretaryGeneral at the September 2014
climate summit, the action plan
is supported by 50 governments
together with civil society and
businesses. It is now an integral
part of the agendas of climate
conferences that have been held
since 2014.
SPEED-INCREASING GREEN
TRANSPORT PLANS AND
INITIATIVES
Whereas up until a few years ago
these were merely considered
commercial marketing tools, today,

these environmental protection
policies are producing countless
benefits referring to:
•

•
•

the adoption of advanced
technologies and strategies to
reduce fuel consumption;
significant reductions in CO2
emissions;
cost savings for businesses.

The most successful plans
offer significant commercial
advantages, boosting investments
in technologies for fuel saving and
for the reduction of emissions and
operational strategies.

THE INTERNATIONAL RAILWAY ASSOCIATION AND LOW-CARBON
RAIL TRANSPORT

More than 25% of global carbon
emissions are generated by the
transport sector. The absence of
effective policies could lead to a
dramatic increase in carbon dioxide
emissions by 2050. Ambitious
climate action taken by the railways
may play a key role in bending the
emissions curve and putting the
world on track to reach full climate
neutrality within the second half of
the century. Close cooperation with
national governments, the private
sector, development banks and NGOs
working in the sustainable transport
sector will be a decisive and winning
factor in the implementation of
policies that cannot be postponed.
The challenge already launched by
the International Railway Association
(240 members all over the world)
sets ambitious but reachable goals to
improve energy efficiency within the
railway industry, reduce greenhouse
gas emissions (GHG) and reach a
more sustainable equilibrium among
the various modes of transport.
The low carbon emissions railway
transport challenge set new ambitious
objectives between 2030 and 2050
compared to those set for 1990:
1.

2.

institutions, continue the intensive
campaign to promote and
incentivise the modal shift. The
challenge of rail transport is based
on these five points:
•

•
•

technical development and
improved management, which
lead to a higher efficiency;
decarbonisation of energy
consumption;
better use of existing railway
resources (infrastructures and
rolling stock);
investment for the
development of new railway
networks;
benchmarking and reporting
to improve performances and
better inform the transports
policy.

Reducing final energy
consumption and greenhouse
gas emissions resulting from
railway operations by 50%.
Switch over from long-distance
road freight transport to lowcarbon rail transport (modal
shift). Double the amount of
goods and people transported
by rail by 2050.

Awareness on the part of private
bodies is accelerating this virtuous
path, together with the greater
level of listening from national
governments and international
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mln of kg of CO2

100

101.3

101.6

102.7

80

85.2

81.1

102.7 MILLION KG
OF CO2 SAVED
IN 2018

60

40

2014

2015

Aware of the need to develop
their business in compliance with
the environmental sustainability
principles set forth at international
level, in 2018, the GTS Group
confirmed its commitment to
protecting and safeguarding the
environment, which comprises:
• contributing to the fight against
planet climate change and
global warming by reducing
CO2 emissions, based on actions
aimed at efficiently using
energy sources and reducing
consumption;
• clearly explaining to the
management that activities
aimed at safeguarding the
environment and protecting it
against any form of pollution
have top priority for the Group;
• ensuring compliance with local,
national and international laws
and regulations, with specific
reference to environmental
protection issues;
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2016

2017

2018

• developing skills and raising
workers’ awareness as to the
need to preserve environmental
resources and natural
ecosystems for the benefit of
future generations;
• with stakeholders, promoting
the sharing and compliance with
best practices;
• directing the Environmental
Management System towards
an ongoing performance
improvement and constantly
monitoring compliance with set
goals, in order to remedy any
non-compliance.
This policy represents the
values forming the basis for the
corporate management system and
constitutes a formal commitment
that is to be shared and spread
at all levels, so as to guide each
worker’s everyday activities
towards a unique shared goal.

ENERGY SAVING
Protecting the environment is synonymous with energy saving.
The reported consumptions basically refer to lighting in workplaces.
The increase in consumptions is directly proportional to the increase
of volumes to be used as offices and classrooms for training courses.
The use of energy-saving technologies mitigates an upward trend less than
proportionate to the trend in values.

kWh

2016

2017

2018

261,308

296,490

435,248

Il costo riferito ai consumi di energia elettrica riaddebitato dal gestore
dell’infrastruttura, aumenta in misura proporzionale all’incremento delle
circolazioni ferroviarie rispetto all’esercizio precedente.

€/000

2016

2017

2018

598

632

721

Fuel consumptions can be mainly attributed to the use of cranes to handle
containers at the Bari Lamasinata railway terminal.

WASTE HANDLING
The GTS Group companies submit the environmental statement form, in
accordance with Italian Law 70 of 1994 and subsequent amendments. Neither
sanctions nor warnings from the competent authorities have been detected.

ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTMENTS
The Rolling Stock Maintenance Workshop has been equipped with a grid
connected photovoltaic system, with total power of 22,880 kW and which
ensures an annual energy output of 32216,19 kWh (equal to 1408,05 kWh/
KW), deriving from the 104 units covering a surface of 170,77 sqm. This
investment is in line with the environmental policies of the GTS Group.
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04.
ATTACHMENTS

04. ANNEXES

Methodology
note
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The IAR 2018, drafted in accordance with the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI Standard) Guidelines, according to the "in accordance - core" option,
was prepared in compliance with the International Framework, prepared
by the International Integrated Reporting Council. The “GRI Content Index”
is provided in the Appendix, with details of the disclosures and related
omissions. Stakeholder involvement continues in the wake of a process that
has long been initiated by the GTS Group in compliance with the provisions
of AccountAbility 1000 - Stakeholder Engagement Standard 2015.

THE ACCOUNTING PERIMETER
The scope of reporting of non-financial information as at 31 December 2018
includes quantitative and qualitative information of the parent company
GTS Holding srl and the three subsidiaries G.T.S. General Transport Service
SpA, GTS Rail SpA, GTS Servizi Srl. The integrated report, in its fourth
edition, includes a comparison, where possible, between the 2016 and
2018 data. The table showing the generated economic value was calculated
in accordance with the methodology set forth by the Gruppo di Studio per
il Bilancio Sociale (GBS) standard and provides, in particular, the use of the
Value Added determination table and of the Value Added destination table.

ACCOUNTING PROCESS
The drafting of the 2018 IAR involved all company functions responsible for
providing the non-financial information subject to reporting in respect of
the area of competence they are involved in. The functions were involved
in the kick-off phase of the project and at later stages during the collection
and processing of the specific information sections of the document.
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Materiality
analysis
The material issues reported in the IAR 2018 derive from the materiality
analysis carried out in 2018 with the involvement of company management
and internal and external stakeholders.
The topics selected essentially relate to the following information areas:
governance and compliance, economic responsibility, responsibility
towards employees, product responsibility, responsibility towards suppliers,
responsibility towards the community, environmental responsibility.

PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES
Once again this year, the GTS Group, starting from the results of the 2017
materiality analysis, has identified the relevant issues to be submitted for
the attention of strategic stakeholders. Following the benchmark analysis
with other competitors and the interviews conducted with the Board of
Directors of GTS Holding, the Group has chosen to propose the same 17
material subjects covered in 2017 IAR.

INTERNAL RELEVANCE
Involvement activities initially concerned top management and some company
departments that assessed the level of relevance of the 17 issues.
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EXTERNAL RELEVANCE
The stakeholders involved were
customers, suppliers, collaborators,
banks and trade associations, which
provided 243 correct answers.
The response figure increased
by about 20% compared to 2017
(202). Once again in 2018, the GTS
Group decided to involve all its
employees.
The collection of data followed on
immediately after the submission of a
questionnaire, which was sent via email
over November 2018 – March 2019.

Part of the answers given in the
questionnaire has been collected
during the “2018 GTS Stakeholders
Meeting”, held at the Rolling Stock
Maintenance Workshop on 14
December 2018.
The related sustainable development
goals have been reported for each
topic.
The stakeholders have been asked
to give a score going from 1 (least
important) to 5 (most important)
to each of the 17 topics.

FEEDBACK RECEIVED
The 234 replies received, if compared with those for the previous year,
can be represented as follows:

2017

2018

Trade associations

3

3

Banks

3

3

Customers

77

60

Suppliers

55

78

Collaborators

65

99

76

The results of surveys have been
analysed and processed into the
materiality matrix below, which
defines the positioning of material
topics, by field, cross-checking
the various levels of importance
attributed to the same topic by the
various stakeholders and by the
corporate organisational structure.

On the basis of this value, the following
7 most relevant issues have been
identified:

The materiality threshold defined
for the choice of material themes
is 4.3.

• environmental externalities;

• anti-corruption;
• health and safety at the workplace;
• diversity and equal opportunities;
• supply chain;
• sustainability of transport;
• price.

The table below guides the reader in identifying the specific disclosure related
to the 7 material themes within IAR 2018.

INFORMATION AREAS

RELEVANT TOPICS

RELEVANT CHAPTER/
PARAGRAPH

Governance and compliance

Anti-corruption

Page 27

Responsibility towards employees

Health and safety at the workplace
Diversity and equal opportunities

Page 54
Page 58

Responsibility towards suppliers

Supply chain

Page 63

Environmental responsibility

Sustainability of railway transport
Environmental externalities

Page 68

Economic responsibility

Price

Page 71
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HIGH

2018 MATERIALITY MATRIX

A
B
C
F

RELEVANCE FOR STAKEOLDER

D

E
G

I

H
L

M
N
O
P

LOW

S

R

Q

LOW

78

HIGH

RELEVANCE FOR GTS

GOVERNANCE
AND COMPLIANCE

ECONOMIC
RESPONSIBILITY

RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARDS EMPLOYEES

PRODUCT
RESPONSIBILITY

RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARDS SUPPLIERS

RESPONSIBILITY
TOWARDS THE COMMUNITY

ENVIRONMENTAL
RESPONSIBILITY

A key is also provided for the 17 topics, comparing the relevance of the 17 topics
between 2018 and 2017.

SELECTED TOPICS

A

Anti-corruption

B

Health and safety at the workplace

C

Diversity and equal opportunities

D

Supply chain

E

Sustainability of railway transport

F

Environmental externalities

G

Price

H

Profit

I

Reputation

L

Research and Development

M

Quality certifications

N

Work-life balance

O

Training

P

Internal mood

Q

Output and outcome indicators

R

Remuneration and benefits

S

Risk management

RELEVANCE
FOR 2018

RELEVANCE
FOR 2017

↔
↔
↑
↔
↑
↓
↑
↑
↓
↔
↔
↓
↓
↓
↓
↑
↓

↑
↓
↑
↑
↓
↑
↑
↓
↓
↑
↑
↓
↓
↑
↑
↓
↑
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Questionnaire
on IAR 2018 level
of satisfaction
Below is the list of the requests for improvements, subdivided into areas:

PRESENTATION OF THE COMPANY AND EXTERNAL CONTEXT
BUSINESS MODEL

29
4

RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

19

STRATEGY AND ALLOCATION OF RESOURCES

40

PERFORMANCE/CAPITALS

13

FUTURE PERSPECTIVES

58

GENERAL INDICATIONS ABOUT THE REPORT (METHODOLOGY)

20

NO ANSWER

60

80

Bridging table
- Material topics –
Standard GRI Indicators
IR Capitals
MATERIAL
TOPICS

1.

MATERIAL AREA
GRI STANDARD

GRI
STANDARD
INDICATOR

MATERIALITY
PERIMETER
Interno

CAPITALS

Esterno

205
Anti-corruption

205-1
205-2
205-3

Suppliers
Customers

-

2.

403
Health and safety at
the workplace

403-1
403-2
403-3
403-4

Suppliers
Customers

Human

3.

405
Diversity and equal
opportunities

405-1
405-2

-

Human

Anti-corruption

Health and safety
at the workplace

Diversity and equal
opportunities

SDGs

GTS Group

4.

404
Education and
Training

404-1
404-2
404-3

Students

Umano
intellettuale

5.

Company profile
Ethics and
uprightness

from 102-1
to 102-13
102-16
102-17

-

-

401
Work

401-1
401-2
401-3

-

Human

Education

Reputation

6.

Work-life balance

402
Work relationships

402-1
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GRI
content index
The table below guides the reader through the identification of information
required by GRI G4 guidelines.
●

Indentifies a piece of information fully reported, data and information
which totally meet the standards required;

○

Indentifies a piece of information that is not reported because it is
not available or because it is not significant and not applicable in the
specific case.

GRI 100

SERIES STANDARD

102
General
disclosures

TITLE

Organizational
profile

Strategy
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GRI DISCLOSURE

COM. PAGE

Name of the organization
Activities, brands, products, and services
Location of headquarters
Location of operations
Ownership and legal form
Markets served
Scale of the organization
Information on employees
and other workers
102-9 Supply chain
102-10 Significant changes to the organization
and its supply chain
102-11 Precautionary Principle or approach
102-12 External initiatives
102-13 Membership of associations

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

12
5
92
92
12/13
15/16/17
12/13
54

●
●

50
50

●
●
●

32
66
65

102-14
102-15

●

4/5
33/34/35

102 -1
102-2
102-3
102-4
102-5
102-6
102-7
102-8

Statement from senior decision-maker
Key impacts, risks, and opportunities

●

SERIES STANDARD

TITLE

GRI DISCLOSURE
102-16

GRI 100

Ethics and
integrity

102
General
disclosures
Governance

102-17

Values, principles, standards,
and norms of behavior
Mechanisms for advice
and concerns about ethics

102-18 Governance structure
102-19 Delegating authority
102-20 Executive-level responsibility for economic,
environmental and social topics
102-21 Consulting stakeholders on economic,
environmental and social topics
102-22 Composition of the highest governance
body and its committees
102-23 Chair of the highest governance body
102-24 Nominating and selecting
the highest governance body
102-25 Conflicts of interest
102-26 Role of highest governance body in setting
purpose, values, and strategy
102-27 Collective knowledge of highest
governance body
102-28 Evaluating the highest governance
body’s performance
102-29 Identifying and managing economic,
environmental, and social impacts
102-30 Effectiveness of risk
management processes
102-31 Review of economic, environmental,
and social topics
102-32 Highest governance body’s role in
sustainability reporting
102-33 Communicating critical concerns
102-34 Nature and total number
of critical concerns
102-35 Remuneration policies
102-36 Process for determining remuneration
102-37 Stakeholders’ involvement in remuneration
102-38 Annual total compensation ratio
102-39 Percentage increase in annual total
compensation ratio

COM. PAGE
●

14

○

●
○
○

56

○
●

37

●
●

56

○
○
○
○
●
●
○
○

63/69
32

○
○
○
○
○
○
○
○
○
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SERIES STANDARD

GRI DISCLOSURE
List of stakeholder groups
Collective bargaining agreements
Identifying and selecting stakeholders
Approach to stakeholder engagement
Key topics and concerns raised

●
○
●
●
●

24

Stakeholder
engagement

102-40
102-41
102-42
102-43
102-44
102-45

Entities included in the consolidated
financial statements
Defining report content
and topic Boundaries
List of material topics
Restatements of information
Changes in reporting
Reporting period
Date of most recent report
Reporting cycle
Contact point for questions regarding
the report
Claims of reporting in accordance with
the GRI Standards
GRI content index
External assurance

●

12/13

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach
and its components
Evaluation of the management approach

○

102-46

GRI 100

102
General
disclosures
Reporting
practice

102-47
102-48
102-49
102-50
102-51
102-52
102-53
102-54
102-55
102-56
103-1

103
Management
approach

Reporting
practice

103-2
103-3
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COM. PAGE

TITLE

24
24
24

○
○
○
○
○
●
○
●
○
○
○

○
○

19
19

STAND. TITLE
201
Economic
performance

GRI DISCLOSURE
201-1
201-2
201-3
201-4

GRI 200 - Economic

202
Market Presence

202-1
202-2

Direct economic value generated and distributed
Financial implications and other risks
and opportunities due to climate change
Defined benefit plan obligations and other
retirement plans
Financial assistance received from government

●
●

Ratios of standard entry level wage by gender
compared to local minimum wage
Proportion of senior management hired from
the local community

○

○

●

203-1
203-2

Infrastructure investments and services supported
Significant indirect economic impacts

○
○

204
Procuremen
Practices

204-1

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

○

205
Anti-corruption

205-1
205-2

Operations assessed for risks related to corruption
Communication and training about anti-corruption
policies and procedures
Incidenti di corruzione confermatie azioni adottate

○
○

206-1

Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust
and monopoly practices

○

301
Materials

301-1
301-2
301-3

Materials used by weight or volume
Recycled input materials used
Reclaimed products and their packaging materials

○
○
○

302
Energy

302-1
302-2
302-3
302-4
302-5

Energy consumption within the organization
Energy consumption outside of the organization
Energy intensity
Reduction of energy consumption
Reductions in energy requirements of products and services

●
●
○
●
●

303-1
303-2

Water withdrawal by source
Water sources significantly affected by withdrawal
of water
Water recycled and reused

○
○

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in,
or adjacent to, protected areas and areas of high
biodiversity value outside protected areas
Significant impacts of activities, products,
and services on biodiversity
Habitats protected or restored
IUCN Red List species and national conservation list
species with habitats in areas affected by operations

○

303-3
304
Biodiversity

304-1

304-2
304-3
304-4

59

○

206
Anti-competitive
Behavior

303
Water

64
68/73

○

203
Indirect Economic
Impacts

205-3

GRI 300 - Environmental

COM. PAGE

73
73
73
73

○

○
○
○
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GRI DISCLOSURE
305-1
305-2
305-3
305-4
305-5
305-6
305-7

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions
Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions
GHG emissions intensity
Reduction of GHG emissions
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS)
Nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX),
and other significant air emissions

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

306
Effluents and Waste

306-1
306-2
306-3
306-4
306-5

Water discharge by quality and destination
Waste by type and disposal method
Significant spills
Transport of hazardous waste
Water bodies affected by water discharges
and/or runoff

○
○
○
○
○

307
Environmental
Compliance

307-1

Non-compliance with environmental laws
and regulations

○

308
Supplier
Environmental
Assessment

308-1

New suppliers that were screened using
environmental criteria
Negative environmental impacts in the supply
chain and actions taken

○
○

401
Employment

401-1
401-2

●
●

401-3

New employee hires and employee turnover
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not
provided to temporary or part-time employees
Parental leave

402
Labor/Management
Relations

402-1

Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes

○

403
Occupational Health
and Safety

403-1

Workers representation in formal joint management–
worker health and safety committees
Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational
diseases, lost days, and absenteeism, and number
of work-related fatalities
Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases
related to their occupation
Health and safety topics covered in formal
agreements with trade unions

○

Average hours of training per year per employee
Programs for upgrading employee skills
and transition assistance programs
Percentage of employees receiving regular
performance and career development reviews

●
○

308-2

403-2

403-3
403-4
404
Training and
Education

404-1
404-2
404-3
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COM. PAGE

305
Emissions

GRI 400 - Social

GRI 300 - Environmental

STAND. TITLE

69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73
69/73

57
59

○

●

60

○
○
60

○

405
Diversity and Equal
Opportunity

405-1
405-2

Diversity of governance bodies and employees
Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men

●
○

58

406
Non-discrimination

406-1

Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken

●

58

STAND. TITLE

GRI DISCLOSURE

407
Freedom of
Association and
Collective Bargaining

407-1

Operations and suppliers in which the right to
freedom of association and collective bargaining
may be at risk

○

408
Child Labor

408-1

Operations and suppliers at significant risk for
incidents of child labor

○

409
Forced or
Compulsory Labor

409-1

Operations and suppliers at significant risk for
incidents of forced or compulsory labor

○

410
Security Practices

410-1

Security personnel trained in human rights policies
or procedures

○

411
Rights of Indigenous
Peoples

411-1

Incidents of violations involving rights
of indigenous peoples

●

412
Human Rights
Assessmen

412-1

Operations that have been subject to human rights
reviews or impact assessments
Employee training on human rights policies
or procedures
Significant investment agreements and contracts
that include human rights clauses or that underwent
human rights screening

○

Operations with local community engagement,
impact assessments, and development programs
Operations with significant actual and potential
negative impacts on local communities

●

62/67

●

62/67

412-2
412-3

GRI 400 - Social

COM. PAGE

413
Local Communities

413-1
413-2

62/67

○
○

414
Supplier Social
Assessment

414-1
414-2

New suppliers that were screened using social criteria
Negative social impacts in the supply chain
and actions taken

○
○

415
Public Policy

415-1

Political contributions

○

416
Customer Health
and Safety

416 -

Assessment of the health and safety impacts of
product and service categories

○

417
Marketing and
Labeling

417-

Non compliance cases respect to rules regarding the
results of products and services on safety and health
417-1
Non compliance cases respect to rules regarding the
results of products and services on safety and health
417-2
Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and
service information and labeling
417-3
Incidents of non-compliance concerning marketing
communications

○

418
Customer Privacy

418-1

Substantiated complaints concerning breaches
of customer privacy and losses of customer data

●

66

419
Socio economic
Compliance

419-1

Non-compliance with laws and regulations
in the social and economic area

●

66

○
○
○
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Si riporta di seguito la relazione del revisore indipendente emessa ai sensi
dell'art. 14 del D. Lgs. 30 del 27 gennaio 2010 relativa al bilancio consolidato
al 31 dicembre 2018 del Gruppo GTS Holding, depositato presso il Registro
delle Imprese come da disposizioni vigenti.
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Prof. Dott. Andrea Venturelli
Associato di Economia Aziendale nell’Università del Salento
Revisore legale dei conti
Dottore commercialista

Independent auditor’s report in accordance with article 14 of Legislative
Decree n. 39 of 27 January 2010
To the shareholders of GTS Holding Group

Report on the consolidated financial statements
Opinion
I have audited the consolidated financial statements of GTS Holding Group (the “Group”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2018, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.
In my opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at 31 December, 2018 and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the Italian regulations governing their preparation.
Basis for opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of this report. I’m independent of the
GTS Holding s.r.l. in accordance with ethics and indipendence rules and standard applicable in
Italy to audit of financial statments. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of management and auditor for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the Italian regulations governing their preparation and, in
accordance the Italian law, for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
Management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the GTS Holding Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (ISA Italia) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
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can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
As part of the audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA Italia), I exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:


Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures in response
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion. The risk of non detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control;



Obtain and understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made management;



Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I’m required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions in a manner that achieves fair presentation;



Obtained sufficent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. I’m responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

I communicate with those charged with governance, identified at the appropriate level as required
by the ISA Italia, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my
audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinion pursuant to article 14, paragraph 2, letter e), of Legislative Decree n. 39/10
The directors of GTS Holding Group are responsible for the preparation of the report on operations
of Group as at 12/31/2018, including its consistency with the consolidated financial statements
and the compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
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I have performed the procedures required under audit standard (SA Italia) n. 720B in order to
express an opinion on the consistency of the report on operations, with the consolidated financial
statements of GTS Holding Group as at 12/31/2018 and on its compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations, and in order to assess whether its contain material misstatements.
In my opinion, the report on operations is consistent with the consolidated financial statements of
GTS Holding Group as at 12/31/2018 and is compliant with applicable laws and regulations.
With reference to the assessment pursuant to article 14, paragraph. 2, letter e), of Legislative
Decree n. 39/10 based on our knowledge and understanding of the entity and its environment
obtained through our audit, I have nothing to report.
Bari, 25 may 2019

The independent auditor
Prof. Dott. Andrea Venturelli
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